8:07: 04 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 16, 2011
8:07 a.m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 8:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair

Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Ma Costello

M ke Doogan

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

David Guttenberg

Reggi e Joul e

Tammi e W1 son

Mar k Neunan

Representative M ke Hawker; Senator Cathy G essel; Bryan
But cher, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Revenue; Joe Bal ash,
Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnment of Natural Resources; Bruce
Tangeman, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Departnment of Revenue; Dan
Seanount , Comm ssion  Chai r man, Alaska Ol and (Gas
Conservati on Conm ssi on.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Steve Davies, Sr. Petroleum Ceologist, Alaska Ol and Gas

Conservation Conmm ssion;
Departnent of Revenue.

Consul t ant ,
SUMVARY

HB 110

House Fi nance Committee 1

Frank Mol li, Production Forecast

PRODUCTI ON TAX ON O L AND GAS

03/16/11 8:07 A M



HB 110 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for
further consideration.

#HB110
HOUSE BI LL NO. 110

"An Act relating to the interest rate applicable to
certain amounts due for fees, taxes, and paynents nade
and property delivered to the Departnent of Revenue;
relating to the oil and gas production tax rate;
relating to nonthly installnment paynents of estimated
oil and gas production tax; relating to oil and gas
production tax credits for certain expenditures,
including qualified capital credits for exploration,
devel opnent, and producti on; relating to t he
limtation on assessnent of oil and gas production
taxes; relating to the determination of oil and gas
production tax values; making conform ng anendnents;
and providing for an effective date."

8:08:45 AM

BRYAN  BUTCHER, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
initiated the PowerPoint presentation: "Fall 2010 Ql
Producti on Forecast."

Comm ssi oner Butcher began with Slide 2: "Three Categories
for Forecasted Production.”

1. Currently Producing- Includes base production and
enhanced recovery production from in rate enhancing
activities (perforations, stimul ati ons, wel |

wor kovers, gas and water injection support).

2. Currently wunder Developnent- New projects that are
currently funded or awaiting project sanction in near
future.

8:12: 03 AM

Comm ssioner Butcher discussed Slide 3: "Three Categories
of Forecasted Production.

3. Currently wunder Evaluation- Includes technically
viable projects in the stage where engineering, cost,
risk and reward are being actively evaluated. Unfunded

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/16/11 8:07 A M



but are considered to have a high chance of being brought
to fruition.

8:12: 52 AM

Commi ssi oner Butcher discussed Slide 4: "Factors that
Affect Production Forecasting.”

1. CEOLOGY
* Rock type and formation characteristics
* Depth, thickness, pressure
« G and gas characteristics (oil gravity,
vi scosity, water content, etc.)
2. DEVELOPMENT PLAN

* Well density and devel opnent rate

* Well bore size and conpl etion techni que

e Artificial lift and enhanced oil recovery

* Facilities and surface operations
3. COMVERCI AL

* Project economcs

e Ol price and nmarket conditions

« Covernnent Policy: access, regulation, taxation
4. PRCDUCTI ON PROFI LE

e History, stage of depletion

e Use production profile to extrapol ate trends
5. TIM NG

Comm ssioner Butcher discussed Slide 5: "North Slope
Producti on Decline.”

FY 1988: production peak -> 2.01 mllion barrels per
day (bpd).

FY 2010: production -> 644,000 bpd, a 68% decline
si nce peak.

FY 1988 to date: production decline rate ~ 5% per
year, on average.

Over the last 10 years, production decline rate ~ 4.2
% per year, on average.

We expect the decline rate to flatten out to 3.2 % per
year, on average, through FY 2030.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/16/11 8:07 A M



8:14:54 AM

Comm ssi oner Butcher detailed the graph on Slide 6: "ANS
Production History and Forecast." The slide depicts the
forecast from 1977 with the sharp increase to approxi mately
2 mllion barrels in 1988. He pointed out the precipitous
decline through the 1990s. The largest producer is the

Prudhoe Bay field illustrated in yellow
8:15: 43 AM
Conmmi ssi oner Butcher discussed Slide 7: "Forecasted ANS

Production FY 2010-2020. He noted that the area shaded
light gray indicates fields that are "currently producing."
The area continues to decline over the next ten years at
the sanme slope seen in the last ten years. The "under
devel opnent™ portion is shown in darker grey while "under
evaluation” is illustrated in black and is the nost
specul ative of the three.

8:16: 53 AM

Conmmi ssi oner Butcher discussed Slide 8: "Conclusion on
Pr oduction. "

* Production forecasting requires consideration of each
project's geol ogy, developnent plans, conmerciality,
production profiles, decline curves and tim ng.

* Departnment uses extensive well and field specific data
acqui red from producers, AOGCC, and DNR

* New field developnent is very inportant in mtigating
decline rates.

Vice-chair Fairclough asked if geologists expect a high

probability of oil in the fields. She asked for the opinion
of the department. She referred to North Slope production
decline illustrated in Slide 5 and the statenent "W expect

the decline rate to flatten to approximtely 3.2% per year,
on average through FY 2030. She wondered about the nunber
of barrels that are anticipated to flow through the line in
2030. Comm ssioner Butcher deferred the question to Frank
Mol |1 .

FRANK MOLLI, PRODUCTI ON FORECAST CONSULTANT, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE, responded that the estimated production through

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/16/11 8:07 A M



the pipeline in the year 2030 is 328,000 barrels of oil per
day.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked for an estinmated price of oil
in 2030. Comm ssi oner But cher r esponded t hat t he
departnment's estimtes extend through 2020 only.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked for a projection of oil prices
needed to cover the budget growh. M. Mlli offered to
provi de the answer.

8:20:11 AM

Vice-chair Fairclough agreed that the throughput tine's
price nust be anticipated for the price of oil in the
future

Representati ve Gut t enberg asked about vari abl es or
scenarios for a devel opment plan.

JOE BALASH, DEPUTY COW SSIONER, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL
RESOURCES responded that a plan of developnent is used to
describe the commitment nmade by the |essees to develop a
unit. A unit is conprised of a collection of |eases that

contain conmmon interest in the oil pool that lies beneath
them The plan of devel opnent describes the pool and how it
will be devel oped and the timng for devel opnent. The pl ans

are submtted to the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR)
when the unit is fornmed under the departnent's regul ations.
Wen the unit is formed on non-state land, particularly
federal land, a different process is utilized wth the
Bureau of Land Managenent (BLM.

Representative Quttenberg asked if influential wvariables
are viewed when a developnent plan is submtted. He
wondered about potential permtting problens, unnecessary
del ays and potential mtigation of the issues.

M. Balash responded that the Division of Ol and Gas
contains a unit with a specific manager. The manager worKks
with the unit operator. The departnent elicits feedback to
i nprove t he under st andi ng of pr ogress W t hin t he
reservoirs. He inmagined that some units are sinpler, as
they are small with a single owner. The larger and nore
conplex the reservoir the nore effort required for
devel opnent of the field. The specific plans devel oped are

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/16/11 8:07 A M



comuni cat ed between the individual unit managers and the
oper at or.

8:24:49 AM

Representative Quttenberg asked about the change in the tax
structure to incentivize devel opnent. He asked about the
devel opnment plan. He wondered about a forecast for the
potential change. Permtting often presents an issue. He
asked if other issues exist. Has industry behavior been
nodi fied by a certain action in the past?

Comm ssi oner Butcher stated an exanple of the heavy oil in
Ugnu. The economics of the oil are conplex as it is very
expensive to produce the oil. Fields that are not currently

devel oped are affected by HB 110. The econom cs of the bill
would allow conmpanies to view areas of production that
woul d not have been considered wunder the current tax
structure.

8:27:03 AM

Representative Gara asked about the Economic Limt Factor
(ELF) system allowed for a zero percent tax unless a field
was | arge and productive. He asked why a low tax rate would
work now when it was ineffective in the past. He added that
the North Slope had a historic price of $18 to $20 per
barrel through 2002, which increased substantially by 2006.
He wondered why the outcome would be different now if the
past indicated that a high price of oil coupled with a |ow
tax rate did not incentivize exploration. Conm ssioner
But cher responded that despite the increase in oil prices
in 2006, the forecasted price of oil is much greater. The
| evel of industry expertise with the advent of horizonta

drilling nmakes exploration formerly difficult in 2006,

possi ble. He added that the industry nust testify with a
conpel ling case that HB 110 will result in change.

8:30: 53 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze comented that a neeting wth the
producers i s pl anned.

Representative Gara commented on newer fields that are nore
difficult to develop. Newer fields require a smaller profit
margi n. The current system accounts for the smaller profit
margin, as the tax rate is only on profits and $30 of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/16/11 8:07 A M



profit nmust be made before progressivity kicks in. He
pointed out that to make $30 of profit on a field with $50
l[ifting costs; progressivity will kick in at a much higher
price. Conmm ssioner Butcher agreed, but stated that the
view presented is for the entire life of the field, making
it less likely for industry to seek devel opnent under the
current tax reginme. Tax credits are of great benefit on the
front end, but the tax structure plays a larger role for
the long term

Representative Gara pointed out that the charts illustrate
that the tax rate will not kick in until well over $100 per
barrel . Comm ssi oner But cher replied that the nore

expensive the field, the higher the price of oil nust be
for progressivity to kick in.

8:33:18 AM

Representative Doogan asked about Point Thonpson. He
understood that the departnent had taken Point Thonpson off
the list because of the |egal dispute between the producer
and the state. Conmmi ssioner Butcher stated that the
forecast is two decades out. He suggested that M. Molli
provi de the history.

M. Mol | i stated that Point Thonpson expects mnor
production in 2015 regardl ess of whether or not a gas line
is constructed. The Point Thonpson production was included
in the "under evaluation" category, which is nore
specul ative than the “"currently producing” or "under
devel opnent" cat egori es.

Representati ve Doogan asked if the production in Point
Thonmpson was immnent prior to the dispute. M. Ml
responded that he provided the fall forecast beginning in
2009. He was unsure about the years prior.

8:35:44 AM

Representative WIlson asked if past forecasts were reviewed
prior to making future forecasts. Conmm ssioner Butcher
responded that the departnment is aware of past forecasts,
but the awareness does not affect future forecasts. The
departnment's past forecasts have been optimstic. Delays
are imm nent |eading forecasts to appear optimstic.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/16/11 8:07 A M



Representative WIson requested docunentation regarding
past production forecast accuracy. Conm ssioner Butcher
offered to provide the requested information to the
conmittee.

BRUCE TANGEMAN, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
informed that he had delivered responses to questions
i ncluding exanples of projections versus actuals included
in the commttee packet.

Representati ve Hawker acknow edged that forecasting was
historically optimstic. He pointed out that sone areas
slated for exploration contain issues that are beyond the
control of the legislature. The federal policy currently

prevents some devel opnent . He  wondered about t he
rationalization about the probability of the degree of
optimsm in the current projections. M. Mlli responded
that the "under evaluation” | ayer proves the nost
uncertain.

8:40: 28 AM

M. MIlli noted that Um at was discovered in 1946 by the

Navy and has 12 wells drilled into the reservoir. Severa
wel l's are productive. The current operator plans to explore
further leading to a high probability that the field wll
produce further. He expressed uncertainty regarding Point
Thonpson. Each project had its range of certainty.

Representati ve Hawker agreed about the substantial degree
of uncertainty in the foreword projection. He saw the
forecast as optimstic. He pointed out Slide 4 and the
factors affecting production forecasting. He opined that
one mssing factor was the fundanental premse of the
availability of capital. Unlimted availability of
investnment capital leads to vastly different circunstances.
He stated that the point had not been addressed to his
know edge. He wondered if the degree of capital was
considered in the forecasting process.

8:43: 28 AM

M. Mol | i answered that he did not consi der t he
avai lability of capital when forecasting oil production. He
i magi ned that the consideration was nade by the operators.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/16/11 8:07 A M



Representative Joule requested additional i nformation
regarding an effective tax rate. He requested a gl obal
picture regarding incentives. He asked how nuch the
econonic downfall inpacted investnent decisions regarding
resour ces.

8:47: 06 AM

Comm ssi oner Butcher responded that he would provide the
conmittee with an effective tax rate slide that accounts
for the credits. He was sure that the industry would
provide further insight. He pointed out that Alaska's
exploratory wells continue to drop, while exploration in
other states is rising.

Representative Costello questioned the accuracy of the
forecast. She inforned that her staff had done research on
the topic of accuracy. Her staff calculated the average
error rates and applied them to the future. The findings
illustrate that in 2019, 343,000 barrels per day were
cal cul ated conmpared to the forecasted 551,000 barrels per
day.

Representative Costell o asked about the 3.2 percent decline
and the reason for the flattening curve. Conm ssioner
But cher offered to provide the conmttee with the requested
information in graph form to offer a history of the
forecast's accuracy. He asked M. Mdlli to provide insight
regardi ng future production.

8:50: 32 AM

M. MIlIli stated that new production wll result from
Ni ki achuk whose peak is anticipated by 2014 or 2015.
Liberty is another new field fornerly anticipated to begin
in 2012, but since delayed. Al pine Wst was al so del ayed.

Representati ve Costello appr eci at ed t he depart nment
providing the conmmttee with the information.

8:52:31 AM

AT EASE

8:58: 51 AM

RECONVENED

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/16/11 8:07 A M



DAN SEAMOUNT, COW SSION CHAI RVAN, ALASKA OL AND GAS
CONSERVATION COW SSION, introduced hinself. He reported
serving with the industry in exploration for Marathon in
off-shore California. He noted that M. Davies is online.
He began his PowerPoint presentation "Alaska Q| and Gas
Conservati on Comm ssion (AOGCC) (copy on file).

9:01: 09 AM

M. Seanmount began wth Slide 2: "Alaska OGOl and Gas
Conservation Conmm ssion."

« AOGCC M ssi on

« Charts and Statistics
1. Historical O & G Activity
2. Drilling Permts (the Plan)
3. Drilled Wlls and Well Wrk (the Actual Wrk)

e The Future

9:03: 53 AM

M. Seanpbunt di scussed Slide 3: “"Alaska Gl and Gas
Conservati on Comm ssi on (AOGCC)"

Quasi-judicial State regul atory agency
-Oversight for underground oil and gas operations

e Private and public lands in Al aska

» Exercises police power of the state
Regulate drilling and production for oil, gas and
geot hermal resources.

M . Seanount detailed Slide 4: "AOGCC M ssion."

 Prevent waste of energy resources (Ol, Gas,
Geot hermal )
e Pronote greater ultimate energy resource recovery

e Protect underground fresh water from damage
caused by oil, gas, and geot hermal operations

e Protect hunman safety
e Protect correlative rights

9: 05: 49 AM

M . Seanount di scussed Slide 5: AOGCC Jurisdiction."

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/16/11 8:07 A M



O 1 and gas resource devel opnent

CGeot hermal resource devel opnent

Under ground storage of natural gas

Met ering accuracy for custody transfer

M. Seanount di scussed Slide 6: "Types  of AOGCC
Perm t s/ Deci sions. "

Drilling- 2300+ | ast 10 years
Wel | wor k- 4000+ | ast 10 years

e Underground Injection (EOR Waste di sposal, Gas
Storage)- 46 last 10 years

e Speci al devel opnent consi derati ons (di spute
adj udi cation, gas flaring, safety equipnent, and

ot hers)-67 last 10 years
Represent ati ve Doogan asked about the term "well work."

9:07:36 AM

M. Seanpbunt offered to address the question later in the
present ati on.

M. Seanount discussed drilling and well work and the
statistics involved in both.

M. Seanount joked about the nature of statistics.

9:09: 52 AM

M. Seanmount discussed Slide 7: "Devel opnent Tineline for
North Slope G| Fields." He explained that three types of
wells exist: exploration wells, oil producer wells, and
service wells. Service wells are the enhanced oil recovery
wells, which inject fluids or gasses into the pools to
allow recovery of the resource. He pointed out that 29
percent of the field wells are service wells.

9:11: 08 AM

Representative Gara comented on statistics showi ng that
exploration wells are declining while devel opnent wells are
increasing. He asked if a developnent well seeks to
mai ntai n production or increase production of a field. M.
Seanount answered both; developnent wells maintain and
i ncrease production. He added that well work includes work

House Fi nance Committee 11 03/16/11 8:07 A M



done on existing wells to repair them or to increase
producti on.

Representative Gara stated that the nmentioned chart was one
year behind. He wondered why conpanies are investing nore
money in developnent wells than exploration wells. M.
Seanount replied that the requested trends and data w Il be
di scussed later in the discussion. He could not specul ate
on the industry's decisions. H's experience was that
exploration was a result of oil price, although he admtted
that did not correlate in Al aska.

9:13: 47 AM

Representative Hawker appreciated Slide 7. He interpreted
t hat the chart illustrated approximately 20 major
devel opnments initiated during the Economc Limt Factor
(ELF) tax structure. M. Seanount concurr ed.

9:15: 09 AM

M. Seampunt added that the chart illustrates the |engthy
time that el apses between discovery and actual production
Economi cs, permtting agencies, and litigation can al

del ay the process.

9:15:56 AM

Representative Joule injected that the Coastal Zone
Managenment was al so a player in the thriving industry.

Representative Hawker pointed out that none of the
menti oned 20 plus devel opnents existed of fshore.

Representative Doogan conmented on the three types of
activity charted on Slide 7. He asked about the difference
between the discovery, |limted regular production, and
regul ar production categories. M. Seanount responded that
l[imted production includes well testing.

Representati ve Doogan understood that many of the listed
wells lacked the |imted production category. M. Seanount
agreed. He stated that when the infrastructure is present,
t hen t he [imted regul ar production cat egory S
unnecessary.

9:18:33 AM

House Fi nance Committee 12 03/16/11 8:07 A M



M. Seanpbunt stated that the chart was conpiled by M.
Davi es.

M. Seanount introduced Slide 8: "Alaska Ol and Gas
Conservati on Conmi ssion."

e AOGCC M ssion

e Charts and Statistics
1. Historical O & G Activity
2. Drilling Permts (the Pl an)
3. Drilled Wlls and Well Wrk (the Actual Work)

e The Future

M. Seanmount npved on to Slide 9: "Alaska Gl and Gas

Activity." The graph illustrates his agency's involvenent
in Alaska since 1957. He stated that the blue curve
illustrates drilling permts processed by AOGCC. He noted a

drop in the curve around 1968 as a result of industry
| eaving Cook Inlet for the newy discovered Prudhoe Bay. He
believed that Cook Inlet continued to hold vast potenti al
and has been sorely negl ected since 1968.

M. Seanount pointed out the next great increase during the
devel opment of Prudhoe Bay and Kuparuk. The activity
dimnished in the md 2000s. He added that the green curve
on the chart includes the nunber of active wells. An active
well is any well that the inspector nust deal wth

Finally, the purple ~curve indicates the nunber of
reservoirs overseen and the plans of devel opnent that have
been approved.

9:21: 45 AM

Representative Gara expressed confusion about the chart. He
asked if the blue dots signify wells or permts. M.
Seanobunt stated that the blue dots are pernmits processed.
The nunber of permts processed is simlar to the nunber of
wells drilled and provides an accurate indicator of
activity.

Representative Gara asked if drilling wells are a
conbination of exploration wells, service wells and
devel opment wells. M. Seanmount responded yes. He added
that the alternate energy wells in the form of geotherm
and underground coal gasification are also included.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/16/11 8:07 A M



Representative Gara noted that 1in 2010, roughly 2500
drilling wells existed. He asked if devel opnment and service
wells were plentiful. M. Seanpbunt responded that the
nunber of well permts is 170, but the nunber of active
wells is 4500.

Representative Gara pointed out that the chart indicates
approximately 170 wells in 2010. M. Seanount replied that
the nunmber of active wells is greater than 4500. An active
well is any well dealt wth by inspectors; these nmay
include wells that are not producing. The nunber of
producing wells is greater than 2000.

9: 25: 05 AM

Representati ve Doogan comrented on the nunber of permts.
He supposed that wuntil 1984, production increased. He
cormented on the sharp decline in permts in 1985. Another
rise is illustrated lasting until 1999 where yet another
sharp decline is shown. He asked to know the reason for the
declines. M. Seanount stated that 1999 provided an
anomaly. He did not have an explanation for the sharp
decline. He thought the question mght be better asked of
i ndustry. Representative Doogan asked again about 1985. M.
Seanount supposed that the major devel opnment of Prudhoe Bay
and Kuparuk had decli ned.

M. Seanmount detailed Slide 10: "Alaska's Average daily Gl
and NG Production Rate.” He stated that Comm ssioner
But cher had provided great detail about the slide earlier
in today's presentation. He noted the decline in Alaska's
production shown between 2000 and 2003 due to the
devel opment of the Alpine and Northstar fields. Al pine was
the largest field discovered in the United States at the
time. He understood that two or three additional areas have
been di scovered, but have yet to be devel oped.

9:28: 19 AM

Represent ati ve Edgnon asked about devel oping technol ogy and
horizontal drilling. He wondered whether an existing well
that utilizes the horizontal drilling technique would be
consi dered a devel opnent wel | . He  wondered about
identifying the trends on the chart regarding the advent of
horizontal drilling and its effect on active wells. M.
Seanount responded that extended lateral drilling has been

used in Alaska since the early 2000s. The wells enploying

House Fi nance Committee 14 03/16/11 8:07 A M



lateral drilling are considered developnment wells. The
technol ogy of horizontal drilling has inproved greatly and
coul d open up additional resources.

Representati ve Edgnon stated t hat he was seeki ng
correl ati ons between the advent of horizontal drilling and
the data provided on Slide 9. M. Seanount stated that he
was in the process of speculating that correl ation.

9:31: 09 AM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked if a correlation mght be drawn
between the flattening of the blue line in 1999 on Slide 10
and the discovery on Slide 11. She wondered if explorers
were in the mddle of processing instead of drilling or
bringing the production online. M. Seanount |iked the
observation, and admtted that he had not considered the
i dea.

Representative Gara wondered if the advent of horizontal
drilling would lead to the expectation of a |ower nunber of
wells since each well reaches further. Fewer wells are
required to obtain a certain anobunt of oil. M. Seanount
stated that Representative Gara's observation was partially
correct. He added that one mght encounter reserves
ot herw se unseen.

Representative Gara asked if the Liberty field was affected
by a federal decision regarding drilling pad construction
He asked if M. Seanpbunt had confidence in the progression
of the field. M. Seanount did not know the answers.

9: 33: 43 AM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked a question about the graph on
Slide 9. She wondered if the blue dots signify permts, and
the green triangles indicate active wells. M. Seanount
agreed that the green triangles indicate active wells
requiring i nspecti on. The wells indicated are not
necessarily produci ng wells.

Representative Guttenberg asked if one well is drilled with
five different horizontal directions, is it considered one
or five wells. M. Seanobunt replied five with one surface
hol e.

9: 35: 56 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/16/11 8:07 A M



M. Seanmount continued with Slide 11: "North Slope Average
Daily Gl and NGL Production Rate." He offered very little
commentary since Conmm ssioner Butcher addressed the slide
earlier.

M. Seanount discussed Slide 12: "Alaska Gl and Gas
Conservati on Conmm ssion."

e AOCGCC M ssion

e Charts and Statistics
1. Hstorical O& G Activity
2. Drilling Permts

M. Seanmpunt discussed Slide 13: "Exploratory Well Permts
(1996-2010)." He nentioned the various participants wth
approved permts. He noted the trends in exploration wells.
He highlighted 2010 where the majority of exploratory well
permts were for alternate energy permts for underground
coal gasification and geothernal.

M. Seanmount highlighted Slide 14: "Exploratory Well
Permts (1996-2010) Statewide: G| and Gas." He noted that
without the alternative energy permts in 2010 see a
drastic drop with only three exploration permts submtted.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the permits led to the source of
the one well discussed in conmttee. M. Seanount clarified
that the chart indicates permts applied for versus wells
drawn. He understood that one exploration well would be
drilled this year. Co-Chair Stoltze wished to amplify M.
Seanount's statenent as exploration wells are the source of
much conmittee debate.

9:39:31 AM

Representative Doogan believed the chart illustrated two
well permits issued in 2010, neither by the major producers
on the North Slope. M. Seanount agreed and indicated that
the next slide would illustrate exploratory well permts.

M. Seanmount turned to Slide 15: "Exploratory Well Permts
(1996-2010) Statewde: Ol and Gas." The chart illustrates
the wells drilled by the four Ilarge conpanies (Unocal,
Mar at hon, ConocoPhillips, and British Petroleum. He added
that zero pernmits were received in 2010 from the four major

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/16/11 8:07 A M



producers. The drop off began in 2005 and decreased
steadily to zero in 2010.

M. Seanount discussed Slide 16: "Exploratory Well Permts
(1996-2010) Statewide: Q| and Gas." The slide renoved the
four major producers and shows what other potential
investors planned for Alaska. The drop-off by the four
maj ors in 2002 was made up by newconers for awhile.

9:41: 35 AM

Vice-chair Fairclough queried Slides 15 and 16. She asked
about the price related to the big producers being drawn to
other markets with a higher rate of return. She questioned
the availability of drilling rigs on the North Slope and
when the particular overlay could be expected so that it
could be seen whether the situation was constrained by the
ability to access drilling rigs. Finally, she wondered if
permts were not being issued (like at Pt. Thonpson) and
whet her that mght affect the situation. She understood
that ACES regulations were not significantly addressed
until the current year.

M. Seanmount responded that he did not know the answer to
the questions. He thought the operators could answer. He
stated that the slides indicated an oil price curve; back
in the 1990s, the price of oil was $20 per barrel and in
2008 it was $130 per barrel. The price today at close to
$100 was still high. The nunbers could be superinposed on
the curves; he did not see any correlation with oil price.
He noted that in the past, oil price was "king" and powered
the decision to drill wells. The inpact did not seem the
same in Al aska.

9:44: 04 AM

Representative Costello recalled a Forbes magazine article
which listed Alaska's North Sl ope as one of the top ten oi
provinces of the future. She asked about the difference
between the article and today's presentation. M. Seanount
asked Representative Costello to clarify her question.

Representative Costello clarified that she was unsure why
the interest in Alaska was waning when, from a geologist's
point of view a viable resource exists. M. Seanount stated
that as a geol ogist who has worked throughout the country,
he found the North Slope had the greatest hydrocarbon

House Fi nance Committee 17 03/16/11 8:07 A M



potential. He recalled ten years ago when investnment was
limted because of the high cost of doing business in
Al aska. He added that infrastructure costs |imted the
interest as well.

9:46: 23 AM

Representati ve Edgnon asked about requirenents for
production of data regarding geothernmal potential. He
wondered if the data was easy to produce. M. Seanount
stated that he wll require production data from the

al ternate energy expl oration.

Representative Edgnon stated that the requirenent did not
exist in the past. M. Seanount concurr ed.

9:47: 37 AM

Representative Gara expressed concern regarding a policy
change using only one year of data. He commented that years
of little exploration were docunented in the chart as far
back as 1996. He wondered why so few exploration wells were
drilled in those years. M. Seanpunt did not know.

Representative Gara asked why only two exploration wells
were slated for 2010.

Representative Hawker clarified that the nunber of approved
permts is listed on the left side of the graph. M.
Seanount agreed and noted three permts in 2010 and four in
1999.

Representative Gara recalled that M. Seanobunt expressed
confusion regarding the |ow nunber of permts in both 2010
and 1999. M. Seanount concurr ed.

Representative Gara commented on the high price of lifting
oil on the North Slope. He wondered if the high price along
with the high cost of infrastructure were ongoing

deterrents. M. Seanount did not know.

9: 50: 54 AM

Representati ve Doogan asked about off shore interest. M.
Seanount responded that areas greater than three mles
of fshore are considered federal waters.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 03/16/11 8:07 A M



Representative Doogan understood that an evaluation of
prospectivity based on the likelihood of finding oil m ght
| ead to offshore drilling.

M. Seanobunt responded that over twenty basins exist in
Alaska with the potential for oil and gas and only two
produced so far. He added that a couple of onshore places
have proven oil and gas, the National Petrochem cal and
Refiners Association (NPRA) and Arctic National WIldlife
Ref uge ( ANVR)

Representati ve Doogan comrented that Conoco is very close
to a potential offshore site.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough wondered about the producer's ten
year plans. She supposed that decisions about resources may
be shifting. She wondered if conpanies adopt profiles on
t he decade as the census occurs every ten year. In 1999 and
2000 the big producers nade managenent deci sions.

9:54: 09 AM

Representative GQuttenberg commented on Slide 16 and the
green shaded for the Departnent of Interior. M. Seanount
responded that the Departnent of the Interior drilled a
nunber of coal bed nethane exploration wells in the past
few years for a geological survey evaluating North Slope
and Al eutian potenti al .

Co- Chair Thomas wondered why HB 110 incentivizes the mjors
as opposed to the independents. He opined that the
i ndependent conpani es ought to be incentivized.

9:55: 52 AM

Representative Hawker enjoyed the chart illustrated on
Slide 14 along with the stories that it tells. He nentioned
the highs and lows of oil prices illustrated. He noted a

preci pitous decline in oil prices in 1998 and 1999 | eading
to economc crisis in Alaska. He wondered if exploratory
drilling helped to extend the life of the Trans-Al aska
Pi pel ine System through the actual successful conpletion of
well's on the North Sl ope.

10: 00: 11 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 03/16/11 8:07 A M



M. Seanount expressed concern about the slow pace of
expl orati on.

HB 110 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10: 01 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 03/16/11 8:07 A M



